
ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL SUMMONS 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Council of the Borough of Rotherham 
will be held at the Town Hall, Moorgate Street, Rotherham, on Wednesday, 17th 
April, 2013 at 2.15 p.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. To consider any communication received by the Mayor or the Chief Executive 

and to pass a resolution or resolutions thereon.  
  
 
2. To consider any questions from the Public.  
  
 
3. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the 

Standards Committee - Pages 8B to 11B (Section B)  
  
 
4. To receive a report from the Leader and to consider reports, minutes and 

recommendations of the Cabinet  - Pages 101C to 112C (Section C) including 
the following recommendations to Council:-  
 

 
Council Tax Discretionary Relief Policy 13A(1)(C) (Minute No. C179) (Page No. 
108C) 

 
5. To consider the following reports of meetings of Cabinet Members:-  

 
 
Children, Young People and Families Services – Pages 52D to 64D 
(Section D) 
 
Communities and Cohesion – Pages 24E to 31E (Section E) 
 
Culture and Tourism– Pages 31F to 39F (Section F) 
 
Regeneration and Development – Pages 62G to 70G (Section G) 
 
Adult Social Care – Pages 54H to 62H (Section H) 
 
Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods – Pages 54J to 65J (Section J) 
 
Health and Wellbeing – Pages 33K to 35K (Section K) 
 
Waste and Emergency Planning– Pages 54L to 59L (Section L) 
 
Deputy Leader – Pages 42N to 48N (Section N) 

 

 

 



 
6. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the Audit 

Committee - Pages 38P to 40P (Section P)  
  
 
7. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the 

Licensing Board - Pages 25Q to 27Q (Section Q)  
  
 
8. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the Health 

and Wellbeing Board - Pages 45S to 55S (Section S)  
  
 
9. To receive and consider reports, minutes and recommendations of the 

Planning Board - Pages 95T to 99T (Section T)  
  
 
10. To put questions, if any, to Cabinet Members and Chairmen (or their 

representatives) under Standing Order No. 7(1) and 7(3).  
  
 
11. To put questions, if any, to the designated Members on the discharge of 

functions of the South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner, South 
Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority, South Yorkshire Integrated Transport 
Authority and South Yorkshire Pensions Authority, in accordance with Standing 
Order No. 7(5).  

  
 
12. Amendments to the Code of Conduct (Pages 1 - 13) 
  
 
13. Localism Act 2011 and the Standards Regime - Appointment of the 

Independent Person (Pages 14 - 15) 
  
 
14. To determine any item which the Mayor is of the opinion should be considered 

as a matter of urgency  
  
 
 
 
J. COLLINS 
Director of Legal & Democratic Services  
 
9th April, 2013.  
  
 



 
 
 

1. Meeting: Council 

2. Date: 17th April 2013     

3. Title: Amendments to the Code of Conduct 

4. Directorate: Resources 

 
 
5. Summary 
  
At its meeting on the 14th March 2013 the Standards Committee discussed and 
recommended changes to the current Code of Conduct for Elected Members. 
The proposed amendments contained in Appendix A to this report are to be 
considered by Council. 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
That Council consider and approves the proposed amendments to the 
Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 12Page 1



7. Proposals and Details 
 
The Standards Committee has been discussing the arrangements for disclosing 
interests at meetings. The current position under the Code of Conduct for Elected 
Members is that if a Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter to 
be discussed at the meeting, that interest must always be disclosed at the 
meeting. However is respect of personal interests, if those interests have already 
been notified to the Monitoring Officer, there is no obligation to disclose them at a 
meeting where they are relevant to any matter being discussed. 
 
The Standards Committee took the view that the current arrangements do not 
meet the requirements of transparency and accountability. 
 
Accordingly the Committee at its meeting on 14th March 2013, resolved that, in 
respect of personal interests, an amendment to the Code of Conduct should be 
introduced to ensure that Members must disclose personal interests at meetings 
where business affecting those interests is discussed. The Rotherham Borough 
Council Code incorporating the proposed amendments is attached at Appendix A 
(see paragraph 11). 
 
Council is requested to consider and approve the amendments to the Code of 
Conduct.  
 
8. Finance 
 
None 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
As contained in the report. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
None 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
None 
 
 
Contact Name: Jacqueline Collins, Director, Legal and Democratic Services  
       Tel: 255768 
       Email: jacqueline.collins@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 2



 
Appendix A 

  ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS  

PART 1  

General Provisions  

Introduction and interpretation  

1.  (1)  This Code applies to you as a member of Rotherham Borough Council 
(“the Council”).   

(2)  It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code and 
uphold the seven principles of public life set out in Annex 1 to this 
Code.  

(3)  In this Code –  

 A "meeting of the Council” means any meeting of –  

  (a) the Council;  

  (b) the Cabinet, a committee of the Cabinet or a member of the 
Cabinet acting under delegated powers;  

  (c) the Council's committees, sub-committees, joint committees, joint 
sub-committees, or area committees. 

 A "member" includes a co-opted member who is entitled to vote on any 
question that falls to be decided at any meeting that falls within 
paragraphs (a) – (c) above.  

Scope  

2.  (1)  Except when you are acting as a representative of the Council when 
sub-paragraph (2) applies, you must comply with this Code whenever 
you –  

(a)  conduct the business of the Council (which, in this Code, includes 
the business of the office to which you are elected or 
appointed); or  

(b)  act, claim to act or give the impression you are acting as a 
representative of the Council.  

Page 3



(2) Where you act as a representative of the Council – 

(a) on any of the authorities which are under a duty to have a 
similar code of conduct to this Code, you must comply with that 
authority’s code of conduct when acting for that authority;  

(b)  on any organisation or body that is not obliged to have a code of 
conduct, you must comply with this Code except to the extent that 
this Code conflicts with any other lawful obligations to which that 
other organisation or body may be subject.   

General obligations  

3.  (1)  You must treat others with respect.  

 (2)  You must not –  

(a)  do anything which may cause the Council to breach any of the 
equality duties;  

(b)  bully any person;  

  (c)  do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the Council. 

 

4.  You must not –  

(a)  disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or 
information acquired by you which you believe, or ought 
reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential nature, except 
where –  

(i)  you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;  

(ii)  you are required by law to do so;  

(iii)  the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 
obtaining professional advice provided that the third party 
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or  

(iv) the disclosure is –  

    (aa)  reasonable and in the public interest; and  

(bb)   made in good faith and in compliance with the 
reasonable requirements of the Council; or  

Page 4



(b)  prevent another person from gaining access to information to 
which that person is entitled by law.  

5.  You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 
regarded as bringing your office or the Council into disrepute.  

 

6. You –  

 (a)  must not use or attempt to use your position as a member 
improperly to confer on or secure for yourself, or any other 
person, an advantage or disadvantage; and  

 (b)  must, when using or authorising the use by others of the 
resources of the Council –  

  (i)  act in accordance with the Council's reasonable 
requirements;  

  (ii)  ensure that such resources are not used improperly for 
political purposes (including party political purposes); and  

 (c)  must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of 
Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.  

7.  (1)  When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any 
relevant advice provided to you by the Council's –  

(a)  chief finance officer (the Strategic Director of Resources); or 

(b)  monitoring officer (the Director of Legal and Democratic 
Services),  

where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her statutory duties.  

 (2)  You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any 
statutory requirements and any reasonable additional requirements 
imposed by the Council.  

 

 

 

 

Page 5



PART 2 

Interests 

Personal interests  

8.   You have a personal interest in any business of the Council where 
either it relates to or is likely to affect –  

   (i)  any body of which you are a member or in a position of 
general control or management and to which you are 
appointed or nominated by the Council;  

   (ii)  any body –  

    (aa)  exercising functions of a public nature;  

    (bb)  directed to charitable purposes;  

    (cc)  one of whose principal purposes includes the 
influence of public opinion or policy (including any 
political party or trade union); or 

    (dd)  which is a private club or society, such as the 
Freemasons, a recreational club, working men’s club 
or private investment club,   

    of which you are a member or in a position of general control 
or management;  

(iii) the interests of any person from whom you have received a 
gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25; or  

(iv) a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be 
regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of 
you or a member of your family or a close friend or 
someone with whom you have a close association to a 
greater extent than it would affect the majority of other 
council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of your ward 
or electoral area. 

Disclosable pecuniary interests 

9 (1)  You have a “disclosable pecuniary interest” in any business of the 
Council where it is a pecuniary interest of yours or a pecuniary interest 
of –  

  (a) your spouse or civil partner, 

Page 6



  (b) a person with whom you are living as if husband and wife, or 

  (c) a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners  

and you are aware that that other person has the interest and the interest 
falls within the categories of pecuniary interests classed as disclosable 
pecuniary interests in regulations made by the Secretary of State from time 
to time under section 30 (3) of the Localism Act 2011.   

(2) The current disclosable pecuniary interests are listed in Annex 2 to this 
Code. 

 

Notification of interests 

10.   You must notify the Council’s monitoring officer of any interest that is 
classed as a personal interest or a disclosable pecuniary interest – 

  (a)  within 28 days of becoming a member or co-opted member of 
the Council;  

(b)   within 28 days of acquiring any interest or becoming aware of 
any such interest;  

(c)   within 28 days of any change to an interest that you have 
previously registered; or 

(d)  within 28 days of disclosing an interest at a meeting of the 
Council 

Disclosure of interests 

11. (1)  Where you have a personal interest in any business of the Council 
and you attend a meeting of the Council at which the business is 
considered unless the interest is a sensitive interest (see 
subparagraph (3)), you must disclose the existence and nature of that 
interest and then consider whether the interest is of such significance 
that it warrants withdrawal from and no further participation in the 
discussion or vote on that item, with any such withdrawal from the 
meeting being recorded in the minutes.  

    

  

 (2)  Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of 
the Council and you attend a meeting of the Council at which the 

Page 7



business is considered, unless the interest is a sensitive interest (see 
sub-paragraph (3)), you must disclose the existence and nature of that 
interest and, unless you have been granted a dispensation (see sub-
paragraph (4)), you must not take part in the discussion or vote on that 
item and must withdraw from the meeting room, including the public 
gallery, before the item is considered by the meeting.   

 (3)  You need not disclose the nature of any personal interest or 
disclosable pecuniary interest in an item of business where the 
Council’s monitoring officer considers that disclosure of the details of 
the interest (“a sensitive interest”) could lead to you or a person 
connected with you being subject to violence or intimidation.   

 (4)  Sub-paragraph (2) and (3), do not apply where the monitoring officer or 
the Standards Committee, as the case may be, has granted a 
dispensation to enable you to take part in the discussion of, or vote on 
that item, or both.   

Offences 

12   You commit an offence if without reasonable excuse –  

  (a) you fail to notify the monitoring officer within 28 days of becoming a 
member of the Council of any disclosable personal interests that 
you have; 

 (b) you fail to disclose at a meeting of the Council the nature and 
extent of a disclosable pecuniary interest that you have, and are 
aware of having, in an item of business that is being considered at 
the meeting, unless – 

  (i) the interest is a sensitive interest and paragraph 11 (3) applies; 

  (ii) the interest is entered in the Register of Members’ Interests 
maintained by the monitoring officer; or  

  (iii) the monitoring officer has been notified that you have such an 
interest but the register has not yet been updated (“a pending 
notification”);  

 (c) you fail to notify the monitoring officer of a disclosable pecuniary 
interest that you have disclosed at a meeting of the Council, or 
where you are a member of the Cabinet at your delegated powers 
meeting, as the case may be, within 28 days of the date on which 
you made the disclosure; 

 (d) you participate in any discussion of, or vote on, any item of 
business at a meeting of the Council in which you have a 

Page 8



disclosable pecuniary interest of which you are aware, unless you 
have been granted a dispensation in accordance with paragraph 
11 (4), or  

 (e) you have a disclosable pecuniary interest of which you are aware in 
any item of business to be dealt with, or being dealt with, by you as 
a member of the Cabinet acting under delegated powers and 
despite having that interest continue to deal with that item of 
business, except where such dealing is for the purpose of arranging 
for the item to be dealt with otherwise than by you.

Page 9



                                                                                                              ANNEX 1 

 

The Seven Principles of Public Life  

Selflessness  

1.  Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.  
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for 
themselves, their family or their friends.   

Integrity 

2. Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or 
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to 
influence them in the performance of their official duties.   

Objectivity  

3. In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, 
holders of public office should make choices on merit.   

Accountability  

4.  Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to 
the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate 
to their office. 

Openness  

5.  Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 
decisions and actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their 
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly 
demands.  

Honesty 

6.  Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating 
to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a 
way that protects the public interest.   

Leadership  

7.  Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 
leadership and example. 

 

Page 10



                                                                                                                ANNEX 2 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

In accordance with Section 30(3) of the Localism Act 2011 a pecuniary interest is 
a “disclosable pecuniary interest” in relation to a member, if it is of a description 
specified below and either 

• is an interest of the member, or 

• is an interest of:- 

the member’s spouse or civil partner 

a person with whom the member is living as husband and wife, or 

a person with whom the member is living as if they were civil partners, 

and the member is aware that the other person has the interest. 

However it should be noted that the disclosure of sponsorship is only in relation 
to the sponsorship of the member and not in relation to a spouse or civil partner. 

In the Table below –  

“body in which you have a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant 
person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a director, 
or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;  

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial 
and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which 
does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) 
to occupy the land or to receive income;  

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M 
gives notification of a disclosable pecuniary interest; 

“relevant person” means you (as a member) or your spouse or civil partner; a 
person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or a person with whom 
you are living as if you were civil partners;  

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units 
of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services 
and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society.   

 

 

 

Page 11



DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the Council) made or 
provided within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by the member in carrying 
out duties as a member, or towards the election 
expenses of the member.  This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and 
Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992(a). 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant 
person (or a body in which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest) and the relevant Council 
– 

(a) under which goods or services are to be 
provided or works are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the relevant Council. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the Council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the member’s knowledge) 
– 

(a) the landlord is the Council; and  

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest 

Securities  
Any beneficial interest in securities of a body 
where— 
(a) that body (to the member’s knowledge) has a 
place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities 
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 

Page 12



issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than 
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of 
any one class in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



 

 
 
 

1. Meeting: Council 

2. Date: 17th April 2013     

3. Title: Localism Act 2011 and the Standards Regime – 
Appointment of Independent Person 

4. Directorate: Resources 

 
5. Summary 
  
Rotherham Borough Council has previously approved the arrangements for 
appointing an Independent Person, as required by the Localism Act 2011. A 
recruitment process has been undertaken and the options for appointment are 
described below. 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
That Council :- 
 

i) approves the appointment of David Roper-Newman as Independent 
Person, for a period of four years; and 

ii) approves the establishment of a post for an additional Independent 
Person. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 13Page 14



 

 
7. Proposals and Details 
 
In accordance s 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011 the Council is obliged to appoint an 
Independent Person to assist in the maintenance of high ethical standards. Council 
delegated the appointment of one Independent Person to a Panel formed from 
members of the previous Standards Committee. The first recruitment exercise, which 
was undertaken last summer, was not successful. The exercise was repeated in 
December, as a result of which the Panel recommended the appointment of David 
Roper-Newman.  
 
Mr Roper-Newman is a civil servant who has experience of handling human 
resources issues. He has been an independent member of the Standards Committee 
of the London Borough of Lewisham for the past 7 years. Mr Roper-Newman lives in 
West Yorkshire and he has assured the Panel that he had good availability. The 
Standards Committee at its meeting on 14th March 2013, resolved to recommend the 
appointment of Mr Roper-Newman to Council.  
 
After deliberation at two of its meetings the Committee was also of the view that the 
appointment of a second Independent Person would be beneficial. Both the Authority 
and the Member who is the subject of an allegation may consult the Independent 
Person. Therefore to have two Independent Persons to be available for consultation 
and advice would reduce the potential for any conflict of interest to arise. The 
additional Independent Person would be of the same status as the first Independent 
Person. 
 
Should Council approve the establishment of a post for a second Independent 
Person, it is appropriate that the recommendation of a suitable individual to Council 
shall be delegated to the Standards Committee. 
 
8. Finance 
 
The allowance paid to an Independent Person is £710 p.a. Should Council approve 
the appointment of an additional Independent Person, the costs can be met from 
within the current budget for Legal Services. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
As contained in the report. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
None 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
None 
 
Contact Name: Jacqueline Collins, Director, Legal and Democratic Services  
       Tel: 255768 
                           Email: jacqueline.collins@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 15


	Agenda
	12 Amendments to the Code of Conduct
	13 Localism Act 2011 and the Standards Regime - Appointment of the Independent Person

